Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners’ Meeting
November 10, 2015

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, November 10, 2015 at 7:00 pm, at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioner Fowler, Commissioner Casey,
Commissioner Salter, and Commissioner Warren

MEMBERS ABSENT: none

OTHERS PRESENT: Carolyn Braly - Town Manager, Joe Clark, Julie Stunmetz, Brian
Milner, Mike Dorsey, Mack Rubel, Cliff Braly, Adam Garfinkle & Dennis Humenik.

Mayor Potter welcomed everyone to the meeting, called the meeting to order with a moment of
silence and led everyone in the U.S. Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the November 10, 2015 agenda.
Commissioner Fowler moved to approve the agenda. All ayes.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the October 13, 2015 minutes.
Commissioner Fowler moved to approve the minutes of the October 13, 2015 meeting. All

ayes.

Public comments: Mayor Potter reminded everyone that this meeting was not a town forum.
All comments are welcomed at this time; however no comments will be taken during the
meeting.

Regarding the PUD Overlay:
Mr. Brian Milner said he did not understand the logic for the desire for high density housing
because it would generate a need for more public services such as ferry service, police and fire
protection. It would be an added burden to the town as well as the county. He favors the
removal of the PUD Overlay.

Mr. Joe Clark said the PUD Overlay was a special situation and for a special plan. Those plans
are dead and have been dead for some time. Lawsuits erupted as a result of the town allowing
things to happen that should not have happened. Fortunately, we are past that now. It was
approved only for that specific set of plans. The PUD Overlay should be amended to meet the
needs and goals of the Town of Minnesott Beach.

Regarding deer culling:
Mr. Joe Clark said he did not know why the town wanted to cull the deer. He said his wife was
probably upset because the deer were eating her flowers. However, having said that, the
wildlife of this community is part of our heritage. He said he had not seen any deer carcusiss on
the side of the road of diseased deer and anything that would represent a hazard to our public



safety. A few years ago there was a major problem in Minnesott with trucks sitting on the side
of the road and folks were shooting down the highway at deer when the dogs chased them out of
the wood. The town took rapid action and that situation is under control. He said he had not
heard what the volumn of the deer population was, how many would be killed, how it would be
done or whether the wildlife commission has a reason to do it. He was not in favor of culling
the deer herd. 1

Mr. Brian Milner said he agreed with all Mr. Clark had said!

Street maintenance of Country Club Drive West
Mr. Joe Clark said he had driven all through the town and everything looked very nice. There
are two areas that need work: Jeff Road and Country Club Drive West. On Jeff Road, the town
has done a good job 2-3 feet into the right-of-way, however, the ditches are full of trees and
weeds that stuff needs to come out of there. The west side of Country Club Drive West looks
‘gross’. The right-of-ways need to be cleaned up. The culverts are being clogged with this
growth and will eventually have to be replaced if the problem was not addressed now. New
equipment may be necessary to take care of the mowing. He knows the tractor we have gets
stuck almost everytime they bring it down to mow.

Mr. Mike Dorsey, representing the South Lake POA, reported the SLPOA is in favor of the PUD
Overlay amendment. And, regarding the deer culling, if there is property damage or injury is
the town responsible for repairing the damage?

Mayor Potter: That concludes the public comments.

Town Manager Report: Three zoning applications have been approved: Rich & Claudie
Beland on Best Lane for a room addition; Bland Rice on Wayne is adding a shop addtion; and
Stroud Construction Co is building a new home in Arlington Place. Newsletter went out ahead
of schedule. Several residents have protested culling the deer herd. Mr. Bailey of Wilson Circle
asked that the speed limit on Bennett Road be reduced. Town Manager will check with DOT on
speed limit signs. There were several deer hit on Bennett Road this fall and the state removed
them.

Planning Board Report: Dennis Humenik reported the Planning Board met the previous week
and were brought up to date on the Board of Commisioners actions on the PUD Overlay by the
Town Manager.

Old Business:

Elections: Mayor Potter. Mayor Potter congratulated the board on their reelection and for
their support of the Town of Minnesott Beach.

PUD Overlay update: Mayor Potter reported it was a this month a year ago to Amend the
PUD Overlay (Section 151.390 B) and gave a brief history of the process that persued.
11/11/14 — BOC voted to remove the PUD overlay

12/09/14 — BOC voted to send to the Planning Board for their recommendation on PUD
removal.



01/13/15 — Planning Board Chairman, Dennis Humenik, reported the PB thought the PUD
should be removed.

3/10/15- Planning Board was asked to put into writing their recommendation regarding the
removal of the PUD.

4/14/15 — Planning Board submitted in writing their recommendation to the BOC to remove the
PUD Overlay. BOC voted to spend $1000 for attorney fees in assistance to remove the PUD.
5/12/15- Mayor Potter and Commissioner Fowler reported their meeting with the town's
attorney, Jimmie Hicks on 4/24/15. Hcks will draft an ordinance to state the change. A letter
was sent to Wayfarer's Cove and JOB Holdings in Atlanta GA and he had not received a
response at that time.

6/09/15 — In a meeting with Jimmie Hicks, he said the Planning Board needed to pass a
resolution on the PUD removal and present to the BOC.

6/11/15 — Mayor Potter, Commissioner Fowler and Dennis Humenik met with Jimmie Hicks to
review the steps in the PUD removal.

7/7/15 — Planning Board voted 3-1 to approve the resolution to amend the PUD Overlay and
recommend to the BOC to adopt the resolution. The only PB concern was the town's liablity of
a lawsuit.

7/14/15 — BOC voted to accept the PB's recommendation and also voted to hold a public
hearing on September 8, 2015 so all of the propery owners within 150" of the PUD Overly could
be notified in a timely fashion.

9/8/15 — A public hearing was held regarding the amended ordinance and zoning map of the
PUD Overlay. Jay Salsman, attorney representing Wayfarer's Cove and JOB Holdings, spoke in
opposition to the amendment being proposed based on what he said that JOB Holdings had
vested rights in the property and also he used "fairness" as an issue. BOC voted to confer with
Jimmie Hicks again based on the comments shared at the hearing and posponed voting on the
amendment until the next BOC meeting.

10/13/15 — BOC discussed again action on the amendments to the PUD Overlay 151.390 B.
Mayor Potter reported there was of a meeting held on 9/22/15 between Jimmie Hicks and Jay
Salsman, attorney representing Wayfarer's Cove Builders LLC and JOB Holdings LLC and Mr.
Hicks gave them until the middle of October to respond as to their intentions and there had been
no response. The BOC postponed action on the Amendment to the PUD Overlay to the
November meeting.

11/10/2015 - Mayor Potter read the Amendment to the UDO Ordinance 151.390 B into the
record. It is, by reference, made a part of these minutes. Mayor Potter asked if there was any
discussion. He said there is a Resolution that has to be approved following the approval of the
Amendment. He read it into the record and is, by reference, made a part of these minutes.
Commissioner Fowler ask what legal status the Resolution has. Mayor Potter said the
resolution is part of the requirements. Commissioner Fowler said in the Resolution it states
revocation of any approved plats. He said the reason he is bringing this up because our attorney
has given them mixed information. Mr. Hicks has said that an approved recorded plat is a done
deal and nothing can be done about that; even if revocation of the PUD is approved, the
registered plat can still be built as platted. Mr. Hicks has also said that is not necessarily the
case. Commissioner Fowler said in the Amendment we are removing the PUD; however in the
Resolution we are revocking all approved plats. He is concerned with the mixed signals we've
gotten from our attorney.

Mayor Potter said Wayfarer's Cove/JOB Holdings (about 5 LLCs) do have approved & recorded
plats on Sections 5-9 by the Town Board. Mayor Potter said Mr. Hicks had told him that he had



contacted the attorney for Wayfarer's Cove/JOB Holdings and had gotten no response from him
regarding the intentions of developers.

Mayor Potter said the board has the recommendation of the Planning Board with at 3 to 1 vote
concerning the exposure to a lawsuit. The Board of Commissioner accepted the
recommendation and the reference documents come from our attorney, Jimmie Hicks.
Commisioner Fowler moved to adopt the Amendments to the UDO Ordinance 151.390 B and
the Zoning Map as presented. Commisioner Fowler asked if the amendment was not adopted as
advertised would the whole process have to be started over? Mayor Potter said no. He said in
the notice to the public regarding the hearing, it said as a result of the hearing that substainial
changes to the amendments may be made following the Public Hearing. Mayor Potter asked for
a vote of the Amendment to the UDO that removes all properties except the Links from the
PUD overlay. All ayes. Mayor Potter read into the record the Resolution that will be recorded
at the Pamlico County Register of Deeds. Commissioner Warren asked about the R-15 zoning
for properties that do not have access to county water. To have a well, an R-20 zoning is
required. After additional discussion, this will be looked into at a later date. Town Manager
said Attorney Jimmie Hicks received a digital copy of the Zoning Map. Commissioner Fowler
asked if the Resolution had to be approved now? Mayor Potter said yes the Resolution has to be
approved tonight in conjunction with the Amendment. Commisioner Warren moved to approve
the Resolution. Mayor Potter asked for a vote on the Resolution. All ayes. Mayor Potter asked
the Town Manager to get the proper papers recorded and have the zoning map changed.

Town Clean up: Commissioner Salter reported the preliminary cost for clean up was $913.93
which included paid help, truck rental, fuel and lunch. Dumping cost has not come in yet.

458 Country Club Drive W: Commisioner Salter reported complaints of water washing over
the culvert everytime it rains hard. He reported Bobby Cahoon had quoted $8000 to repair the
drainage a while ago. Mr. Clark said it is the town's responsibilies to keep the ditches cleaned
of grass and underbrush. After much discussion, Commisioner Salter said he would see what
can be done. Mayor Potter said the Town of Minnesott Beach did not put up the retaining wall.
Part of it is on private property and part is on the town right-of-way. Rocks have been placed on
the town's culvert by privates persons. Mayor Potter said the road is not on the center of the
town's right-of-way, it is skewed to the east side. He said we've not been able to determine
exactly where the town's right-of-way is. We are assuming that the culvert is where the town's
right-of-way is. Commisioner Salter moved to have Country Club Drive W surveyed so the
town will know where their right-of-way actually is. All ayes.

Deer Culling: Commisioner Fowler said in early 2014 the town received complaints of
roaming deer and people feeding the deer. He talked with NC Wildlife Resourses Commission
and they sent Jonathan Shaw down in early April of 2014. Commisioner Fowler showed Mr.
Shaw around town, the golf course, up and down Bennett Road the damage done to property.
Commisioner Fowler read the letter Mr. Shaw sent April 8, 2014 regarding the town's deer
population into the record. Mr. Shaw recommended removal of 45 deer per year to maintain a
healthy deer population. NC Wildlife strongly endorces hunting as a tool to manage deer. He
recommended completely eliminating the town's ordinance 94.07 which prohits hunting within
the town limits. This would allow bow hunters to take advantage of the nearly 4 month long
bow hunting season in NC. Property owners could continue to prohit hunting on their own
property. The Town's ordinance prohiting the discharge of firearms within the town limits



would continue to make it unlawful to hunt with a rifle or shotgun. Commisioner Fowler said
we continue to get complaints and the town's requested folks not to feed the deer as well. He
said, from personal observation, the deer continue to overrun the town, particularly the Bluff
area. One way to handle is to allowing bow hunters come in. They would abide by aii NC iaws
and would be responsible for their own actions. A local property owner of 10 acres called
Commissioner Fowler and told him he wants to bow hunt on his own property. Commissioner
Fowler said we needed to do something because things will only get worse. Commisioner
Warren agreed something needs to be done. Mayor Potter asked if we repealed this ordinance
how would we manage it? Commisioners Salter and Warren both said the hunters would have
to have permission from individual properties to hunt. Mayor Potter said a 2/3 vote was needed
to repeal the ordinance. Commisioner Fowler moved to repeal Ordinance 94.07. All ayes.

New Business: CD maturing 11/24/15 - Commissioner Warren moved to have the Town
Manager roll over the First South Bank CD at the best interest rate under 12 months. All ayes.

Financial Report: Commissioner Warren reported the town's current assets are: First Citizen's
Bank Checking $8,992 91; First Citizen's MM $223,762.53; First South Bank & Savings
$156,508.13; North Carolina Management Trust is $200,651.36; Petty Cash $50.00. The town
currently has 4 CDs at First South Bank & Savings ($40,000; $20,542.96; $20,119.55; and
$20,000.00). Total assets to the Town are a total of $713,496.70. The balance sheet is in
excellent shape at this time.

Miscellaneous:

Commissioner Salter has priced an air compressor for the tractor and truck at Sears and will
pick it up Friday. He has contracted an electrician to put in a 220 outlet for the compressor.
Commissioner Salter also reported the limbs along Country Club Drive, Lakeshore Drive and
Pinewood Drive have been trimmed.

Commissioner Warren moved to adjourn. All ayes.

Denise Meyerson, Towh Clerk



